
Agendas, Reports and Minutes will be provided upon request in the following formats:

Large Clear Print: Braille: Audio: Native Language

 West Lindsey District Council 

Guildhall Gainsborough
Lincolnshire DN21 2NA

Tel: 01427 676676 Fax: 01427 675170

This meeting will be webcast and published on the Council’s website

AGENDA     

Prayers will be conducted prior to the start of the meeting.
Members are welcome to attend.

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Council will be held in the The Council 
Chamber  - The Guildhall, , on Monday, 4th July, 2016 at 7.00 pm, and your 
attendance at such meeting is hereby requested to transact the following business.

To: Members of West Lindsey District Council

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

2. PRESENTATION OF PETITION 

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of Council held 
on 9 May 2016.

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the Extraordinary Meeting of Council 
held on 25 May 2016.

(PAGES 1 - 20)

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members may make any declarations of interest at this point and may also make them at 
any point during the meeting.

5. MATTERS ARISING 
(PAGES 21 - 22)

Public Document Pack



Agendas, Reports and Minutes will be provided upon request in the following formats:

Large Clear Print: Braille: Audio: Native Language

3. ANNOUNCEMENTS
i) Chairman of the Council
ii) Leader of the Council 
iii)      Head of Paid Service

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

8. QUESTIONS PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE NO.9 

9. MOTIONS PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE NO.10 

10. APPOINTMENT TO RURAL TRANSPORT WORKING GROUP 
(PAGES 23 - 26)

4. MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS
To receive the minutes of Committee meetings published since the Council meeting on 
11 April 2016

M Gill
Chief Executive

The Guildhall
Gainsborough

Friday, 24 June 2016



Annual Council – 9 May 2016 

 1 

WEST LINDSEY DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Minutes of the 44th Annual Meeting of Council held in the Council Chamber at the 
Guildhall, Gainsborough, on Monday, 9 May 2016, at 7.00 pm. 
 
Present:  Councillor Angela Lawrence (Chairman) 
  Councillor Roger Patterson (Vice Chairman) 
 

Councillor Gillian Bardsley 
Councillor Owen Bierley 
Councillor Matthew Boles 
Councillor David Bond 
Councillor Jackie Brockway 
Councillor David Cotton 
Councillor Stuart Curtis 
Councillor Chris Darcel 
Councillor Michael Devine 
Councillor Adam Duguid 
Councillor Steve England 
Councillor Ian Fleetwood 
Councillor Paul Howitt - Cowan 
Councillor Giles McNeill  
 

Councillor John McNeill 
Councillor Pat Mewis 
Councillor Jessie Milne 
Councillor Richard Oaks 
Councillor Judy Rainsforth 
Councillor Tom Regis 
Councillor Di Rodgers 
Councillor Lesley Rollings 
Councillor Reg Shore 
Councillor Thomas Smith 
Councillor Lewis Strange  
Councillor Jeff Summers 
Councillor Anne Welburn  

      Councillor Trevor Young 

 
Also Present:  3 members of the public 

 
 

In Attendance:    Manjeet Gill  Chief Executive 
Mark Sturgess Chief Operating Officer 
Ian Knowles  Director of Resources 
Penny Sharp  Commercial Director 
Alan Robinson Strategic Lead for Democratic and 

Business Support and Monitoring 
Officer 

Oliver Fytche Taylor Team Manager Spatial Planning  
Strategic Growth 

Dinah Lilley Governance and Civic Officer 
Nicola Calver Governance and Civic Officer 
  
 

Also in Attendance: Rev Sue Deacon 
 

 
1 CHAIRMAN’S WELCOME 
 
The Chairman opened the meeting by reflecting on the previous year which had 
seen mixed blessings, and thanked the Vice Chairman and others for standing in to 
represent the Council when she had been unable to attend.  On those occasions 
when she had been able to be present she had attended some wonderful places and 
civic events and it had been a pleasure to take part. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Annual Council – 9 May 2016 

 2 

 
2 APOLOGIES 

Councillor Sheila Bibb 
Councillor Alexander Bridgwood 
Councillor Hugo Marfleet 
Councillor Malcolm Parish  

 
The Chairman also offered apologies on behalf of Rev Deacon Stephen Boulter 
who had been unable to attend. 
 

 
3 MEMBERS’ DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest at this point of the meeting. 
 
 
4 TO ELECT A CHAIRMAN OF THE DISTRICT COUNCIL  
 
It was proposed and seconded that Councillor Roger Patterson be appointed the 
Chairman of Council for the civic year 2016/17, there being no further nominations it 
was:- 
 

RESOLVED that Councillor Roger Patterson be elected Chairman of 
the Council for the 2016/17 civic year. 

 
Councillor Patterson made and signed the statutory declaration of acceptance of 
office and took the Chair.  The former Chairman of the Council then presented the 
Chain of Office to Councillor Patterson. 
 
Councillor Patterson thanked the Council for his appointment, moved a vote of 
thanks to the outgoing Chairman for her services to the Council and presented her 
with a Past Chairman’s Badge.   
 
 
5 TO ELECT A VICE-CHAIRMAN OF THE DISTRICT COUNCIL  
 
It was proposed and seconded that Councillor Jessie Milne be appointed as the 
Vice-Chairman of the Council.   
 
On being voted upon it was :- 
 

RESOLVED that Councillor Jessie Milne be appointed Vice-Chairman 
of the Council for the 2016/17 civic year. 

 
 
6 CHAIRMAN’S  CHAPLAIN 
 
The former Chairman of Council moved a vote of thanks to her Chaplain, Deacon 
Stephen Boulter for his services and support during the past year. 
 

Page 2



Annual Council – 9 May 2016 

 3 

The Chairman of Council advised that his Chaplain for the year was to be the Rev 
Sue Deacon. 
 
The former Chairman then presented the Chairman with the Chaplain’s stole. The 
stole was then presented to the newly appointed Chairman’s Chaplain. 
 

RESOLVED that Rev Sue Deacon be appointed as the Chairman’s 
Chaplain.  

 
 
7 COUNCIL MINUTES  (PAPER A) 

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Council meeting held on 11 April 
2016 be confirmed and signed as a correct record. 

 
 
8 TO ELECT A LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 
 

 RESOLVED that Councillor Jeff Summers be elected Leader of the 
Council for the 2016/17 civic year. 

 
 
9 TO ELECT A DEPUTY LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

 
RESOLVED that Councillor Anne Welburn be elected Deputy Leader 
of the Council for the 2016/17 civic year. 

 
 
10 REVIEW OF THE ALLOCATION OF SEATS TO POLITICAL GROUPS ON 

COMMITTEES/SUB-COMMITTEES (PAPER B) 
 

 RESOLVED that: 
 

a) the details of political groups, as set out in Appendix A to Paper B, 
be noted; 

b) the number of Members to be appointed to serve on each 
committee and sub-committee be noted; and  

c)   the allocation to different political groups of seats on 
committees/sub-committees, as set out in Appendix B to Paper B 
be noted. 

 
 
11 APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEES (PAPER C) 
 

RESOLVED that,  
a) the Rules relating to proportionality be suspended for the 

Challenge and Improvement Committee. 
b) in accordance with the provisions of section 16 of the Local 

Government and Housing Act 1989 and the wishes expressed by 

Page 3



Annual Council – 9 May 2016 

 4 

political groups, members be appointed to serve on the Council’s 
committees for the 2016/17 civic year as follows: 
 
Challenge and Improvement Committee (12 members) 

 
Councillor David Bond 
Councillor Stuart Curtis 
Councillor Chris Darcel 
Councillor Adam Duguid 
Councillor Stuart Kinch 
Councillor Paul Howitt-Cowan 
Councillor Hugo Marfleet 
Councillor Pat Mewis 
Councillor Lesley Rollings  
Councillor Lewis Strange 
Councillor Trevor Young 
Councillor Angela White 
 

Chief Officer Employment Committee (9 Members) 
 

Councillor Jackie Brockway 
Councillor David Cotton 
Councillor Michael Devine 
Councillor Stuart Kinch 
Councillor Angela Lawrence 
Councillor Giles McNeill 
Councillor Judy Rainsforth 
Councillor Jeff Summers 
Councillor Anne Welburn 

 
Corporate Policy and Resources Committee (12 Members) 
 

Councillor Owen Bierley 
Councillor Matthew Boles 
Councillor David Cotton 
Councillor Michael Devine 
Councillor Adam Duguid 
Councillor Steve England 
Councillor Ian Fleetwood 
Councillor John McNeill 
Councillor Tom Regis 
Councillor Reg Shore 
Councillor Jeff Summers 
Councillor Anne Welburn 

 
Governance and Audit Committee (6 Members) 

 
Councillor Sheila Bibb 
Councillor David Bond 
Councillor Jackie Brockway 

Page 4



Annual Council – 9 May 2016 

 5 

Councillor Giles McNeill 
Councillor John McNeill 
Councillor Angela White 

 
Licensing and Regulatory Committee (12 Members) 
 

Councillor Gill Bardsley 
Councillor Owen Bierley 
Councillor Sheila Bibb 
Councillor David Cotton 
Councillor Paul Howitt-Cowan 
Councillor Angela Lawrence 
Councillor Pat Mewis 
Councillor Jessie Milne 
Councillor Richard Oaks 
Councillor Judy Rainsforth 
Councillor Mrs Di Rodgers 
Councillor Lewis Strange 

 
Planning Committee (12 members) 
 

Councillor Owen Bierley 
Councillor Matthew Boles 
Councillor David Cotton 
Councillor Stuart Curtis 
Councillor Michael Devine 
Councillor Ian Fleetwood 
Councillor Hugo Marfleet 
Councillor Giles McNeill 
Councillor Jessie Milne 
Councillor Roger Patterson 
Councillor Judy Rainsforth 
Councillor Thomas Smith 

 
Prosperous Communities Committee (12 Members) 
 

Councillor Gillian Bardsley 
Councillor Sheila Bibb 
Councillor Owen Bierley 
Councillor Michael Devine 
Councillor Steve England 
Councillor Paul Howitt-Cowan 
Councillor Jessie Milne 
Councillor Malcolm Parish 
Councillor Mrs Di Rodgers 
Councillor Lesley Rollings 
Councillor Thomas Smith 
Councillor Trevor Young 
 

Page 5



Annual Council – 9 May 2016 

 6 

12 APPOINTMENT OF SUB-COMMITTEES AND OTHER GROUPS AND 
BODIES (PAPER D) 

 
RESOLVED that: 
a) the Rules relating to proportionality be suspended for appointment 

to the Appeals Board; 
b) the Rules relating to proportionality be suspended for appointment 

to the Standards Sub-Committee; and 
c) the Rules relating to proportionality be suspended for appointment 

to the Joint Staff Consultative Committee; and 
d) the following appointments be confirmed 

 
Joint Staff Consultative Committee 

Councillor Jackie Brockway 
Councillor Jessie Milne 
Councillor David Cotton  
Councillor Matthew Boles 
Councillor Malcolm Parish (reserve) 
Councillor Pat Mewis (reserve) 
Councillor Paul Howitt-Cowan (reserve) 
Councillor Reg Shore (reserve) 

 
Appeals Board 

Councillor Stuart Kinch 
Councillor Ian Fleetwood 
Councillor Malcolm Parish 
Councillor Paul Howitt-Cowan 
Councillor Reg Shore 
Councillor Angela White 
 

Standards Sub-Committee 
Councillor Gillian Bardsley 
Councillor Roger Patterson 
Councillor Pat Mewis 
Councillor Anne Welburn 
Councillor David Cotton 
Councillor Reg Shore 

 
Lincolnshire Show Task and Finish Group 

Councillor Pat Mewis 
Councillor Owen Bierley 
Councillor Jessie Milne 
Councillor Roger Patterson 
Councillor Lewis Strange 
Councillor David Cotton 
Councillor Angela White 

 

Editorial Advisory Board 
Councillor Giles McNeill 
Councillor Angela White 

Page 6



Annual Council – 9 May 2016 

 7 

Councillor Mick Devine 
Councillor Di Rodgers 
  

Trinity Arts Centre 
Councillor Gillian Bardsley 
Councillor Jessie Milne 

 
West Lindsey Community Awards Panel. 

Councillor Roger Patterson 
Councillor Sheila Bibb 
Councillor David Cotton 
Councillor Giles McNeill 
Councillor Judy Rainsforth 

 
Central Lincolnshire Joint Strategic Planning Committee. 

Councillor Jeff Summers 
Councillor Stuart Curtis 
Councillor David Cotton 
Councillor Ian Fleetwood 

 
Democracy Working Group 

Councillor Roger Patterson 
Councillor Anne Welburn 
Councillor Giles McNeill 
Councillor Angela Lawrence 
Councillor Paul Howitt-Cowan 

 
Tourism Working Group  

Councillor Gillian Bardsley 
Councillor Sheila Bibb 
Councillor Paul Howitt-Cowan 
Councillor Pat Mewis 
Councillor Richard Oaks 
Councillor Lesley Rollings 

 
Community Grants Panel 

Councillor Owen Bierley 
Councillor Stuart Curtis 
Councillor Jessie Milne 
Councillor Judy Rainsforth 
Councillor John McNeill (reserve) 
 

Commercial Plan Steering Group  
Councillor Owen Bierley 
Councillor Adam Duguid 
Councillor Stuart Kinch 
Councillor Tom Regis 
Councillor Jeff Summers 

 
 

Page 7



Annual Council – 9 May 2016 

 8 

Gainsborough Growth Fund – Funding Consultative Panel 
Councillor Lesley Rollings 
Councillor Tom Regis 
Councillor Stuart Kinch 
Councillor Gillian Bardsley (reserve) 
Councillor Sheila Bibb (reserve) 
Councillor David Bond (reserve 
 

OUTSIDE BODIES 
 

Acis Housing Group Local Management 
Board 

Cllr Sheila Bibb (Gainsborough) 
Cllr Jessie Milne (Rural) 
Cllr Gill Bardsley (Gainsborough 
reserve) 
Cllr Stuart Kinch (Rural reserve) 

Age UK Lindsey - East and West Lindsey 
Divisional Committee 

Cllr Owen Bierley 

Ancholme Internal Drainage Board Cllr Jeff Summers 

District Councils’ Network Cllr Jeff Summers 

District Health and Wellbeing Network Cllr Lesley Rollings 

East Midlands Council 
Cllr Jeff Summers 
Cllr Anne Welburn 

Gainsborough Adventure Playground 
Association 

Cllr Matthew Boles 

Gainsborough Community Hotel Cllr Sheila Bibb 

Gainsborough Old Hall Partnership Cllr Gillian Bardsley 

Gainsborough Town Centre Partnership Cllr Gillian Bardsley 

Groundwork Creswell, Ashfield and Mansfield 
Cllr Matthew Boles 
Cllr Ian Fleetwood (reserve) 

Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire 
Cllr David Bond 
Cllr Angela White 

Healthwatch Provider Network Meeting (West 
Lincs) 

Cllr David Bond 

Heritage Trust of Lincolnshire Cllr Howitt-Cowan 

Humberside International Airport Consultative 
Committee 

Cllr Owen Bierley 

LGA General Assembly Cllr Jeff Summers 

Lincoln and District Citizens Bureau Finance 
Sub-Committee 

Cllr Angela White 

Page 8



Annual Council – 9 May 2016 

 9 

Lincoln Area Dial-a-Ride Management 
Committee 

Cllr Giles McNeill 

Lincolnshire Branch of the Campaign for the 
Protection of Rural England 

Cllr Owen Bierley 

Lincolnshire Forum for Agriculture and 
Horticulture 

Cllr Hugo Marfleet 

Lincolnshire Police and Crime Panel Cllr Anne Welburn 

Lincolnshire Sports Partnership Cllr Lesley Rollings 

Lincolnshire Waste Partnership Cllr David Cotton 

Lincolnshire Wolds Countryside Management 
Project 

Cllr Angela Lawrence 
Cllr Tom Regis 

Local Crime Prevention Panel Cllr Judy Rainsforth 

PATROL (CPE) 
Cllr Jeff Summers 
Vacancy (Reserve) 

Pensions Committee Cllr Jeff Summers 

Robin Hood Doncaster Sheffield Airport 
Consultative Committee 

Cllr Lewis Strange 

Scunthorpe & Gainsborough Water Level 
Management Board 

Cllr Pat Mewis 
Cllr Jeff Summers 

SPARSE Cllr Owen Bierley 

Sure Start Gainsborough Partnership Board Cllr Gill Bardsley 

Trustees of Charles Cooper Trust 

Mick Tinker (to 2018) 
Cllr Judy Rainsforth (to 2019) 
Cllr Sheila Bibb (to 2019) 
Cllr Paul Howitt-Cowan (to 2018) 

Trustees of Dixons Almshouses Cllr Angela Lawrence (to 2019) 

Trustees of Francis Barker Trust 
Cllr Jessie Milne (to 2018) 
Cllr Judy Rainsforth (to 2017) 

Trustees of Gainsborough Education Charity 
Cllr Jessie Milne (to 2018) 
Cllr Judy Rainsforth (to 2017) 

Trustees of W G Rose Memorial 
Cllr Jessie Milne (to 2018) 
Cllr Judy Rainsforth (to 2017) 

Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board Cllr Steve England 

West Lincolnshire Community Safety 
Partnership Strategic Group 

Cllr Sheila Bibb 

West Lincolnshire Domestic Abuse Service Cllr Pat Mewis 

West Lindsey British Trust for Conservation 
Volunteers 

Cllr Gillian Bardsley 
Cllr Sheila Bibb 

Page 9



Annual Council – 9 May 2016 

 10 

West Lindsey Citizens’ Advice Bureau 
Executive Committee 

Cllr Angela White 

Witham Third Internal Drainage Board 

Cllr Steve England 
Terry Williams 
Cllr Alex Bridgwood 
Cllr I Fleetwood 

Wolds Community Transport Association 
Limited 

Cllr Lewis Strange 

 
 
13 APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSON FOR CODE OF CONDUCT 

(PAPER E) 
 
West Lindsey District Council was required under the Localism Act 2011 to have at 
least one Independent Person to provide support and advice on Code of Conduct 
related matters.     The West Lindsey News was used to advertise the vacancies and 
six applications were received.  Copies of the advertisement, letter and person 
specification were attached to the report.  Shortlisting took place and interviews were 
held on 27 April 2016.   
 
Note Councillor Cotton declared that he knew both applicants well so would not vote 
on the appointments. 
 

RESOLVED that the following be appointed to serve as Independent 
Persons from 10 May 2016 

 

 Mr S Beard 

 Ms M Marshall-Brown 
 

 

14 APPOINTMENT OF REMUNERATION PANEL (PAPER F) 
 
West Lindsey District Council’s Remuneration Panel was first appointed in 2001 and 
could comprise between five and seven members.  The period of office of two 
Members of the Remuneration Panel expired in May 2016. 
 
West Lindsey News was used to advertise the vacancies and seven applications 
were received.  Copies of the advertisement, letter and person specification were 
attached to the report.  Shortlisting took place and Interviews were held on 14 April 
2016. 
 
Note Councillor Cotton declared that he knew Mr Lomas well so would not vote on 
the appointments.  Several other Councillors also noted that they knew Mr Lomas 
but the Monitoring Officer indicated that there was no prejudicial or pecuniary interest 
and no-one should be precluded from voting. 
 

RESOLVED that the following be appointed to serve on the 
Remuneration Panel until May 2019 

 

 Mr David Lomas 

Page 10



Annual Council – 9 May 2016 

 11 

 Mr Richard Quirke 

 Dr Chris Riley 
 
 
Note  Councillor Fleetwood arrived at 7.33pm 
 
 
15 REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION (PAPER G) 
 
The Strategic Lead for Democratic and Business Support and Monitoring Officer 
introduced the report which set out the process to be followed in reviewing the 
Constitution annually.  Those changes recommended for approval by Council were 
set out in Section 2 of the report, and also listed were amendments made in-year 
and approved by the Governance and Audit Committee, as agreed by Council on 21 
May 2015. 
 
Further work was proposed by the Governance and Audit Committee both relating to 
the Planning Committee and future Governance arrangements of the Council. 

 

 The pre-application process and protocol 

 The Committee referral process ie the Scheme of Officer Delegation 
for this area; and 

 Officer involvement in the Appeals Process 
Work on the above items to be submitted for approval by the Governance and Audit 
Committee. 

 
It was further recommended that Council commission the Monitoring Officer, with 
support from and through the Governance and Audit Committee, to undertake further 
detailed evaluation work into the implications of a possible move to the leader 
cabinet model, and submit recommendations to full council during autumn 2016.  
However debate ensued on the merits or otherwise of Cabinet models, and the fact 
that this had been debated and voted upon in the past.  It was acknowledged that 
some Councils were now moving away from Cabinet systems and returning to 
Committee led authorities, although it was agreed that the Council’s decision making 
process could be improved.  Members who had attended the recent workshop 
acknowledged its usefulness and it was noted that at this stage it was evaluation 
work to consider the options that was being proposed. 
 
It was therefore proposed that recommendation e) be amended to include the words 
“hybrid or better Committee system” after the “leader cabinet model”. 
 
The above amendment was seconded and subsequently voted upon. 
 

RESOLVED that 
 Recommendation e) be amended to read:- 
e) That Council commission the Monitoring Officer, with support from 

and through the Governance and Audit Committee, to undertake 
further detailed evaluation work into the implications of a possible 
move to the Leader Cabinet model, hybrid or more effective 
Committee System, with a view to achieving the outcomes set out 

Page 11



Annual Council – 9 May 2016 

 12 

below ((i) – (vii)) relate and submit recommendations to full 
Council during autumn 2016. 

 
The recommendations, including the above agreed amendment were then moved 
and seconded en bloc and voted upon. 
 

RESOLVED that 
a) that Council note the outcome of the annual review. 
 
b) that the amendments detailed at Section 2 of the appended report 

be approved for immediate adoption and implementation. 
 
c) that the amendments made to the Financial and Contract 

Procedure Rules, agreed by the Governance and Audit 
Committee at its meeting on 19 January 2016, shown at Appendix 
1 of the appended report be noted. 

  
d)  that the further planned work detailed at Section 4 of the 

appended report be noted and supported including the addition of 
the followings areas relating to section 4.1(a): -  

 

 The pre-application process and protocol 

 The Committee referral process ie the Scheme of Officer 
Delegation for this area; and 

 Officer involvement in the Appeals Process 
 
e) That Council commission the Monitoring Officer, with support from 

and through the Governance and Audit Committee, to undertake 
further detailed evaluation work into the implications of a possible 
move to the Leader Cabinet model, hybrid or more effective 
Committee System, with a view to achieving the outcomes set out 
below ((i) – (vii)) relate and submit recommendations to full 
Council during autumn 2016. 

 
(i) Speed of decision making – The Council’s Decision 

Making process allows it to take advantage of 
opportunities on commercial projects and ensure that 
WLDC can work as quickly as its colleagues in Greater 
Lincolnshire    

(ii) Empowering Individuals – Those members charged with 
representing the Council with partners have the authority 
to act and take responsibility for the decisions they make.  

(iii) Effective Council governance and roles of Members and 
Officers - to ensure the Council has maximum influence 
and impact with any potential Mayor and Combined 
Authority to the benefit of West Lindsey. 

(iv) Specialist Knowledge – Members have the knowledge and 
  skills to make good, well informed and safe decisions   

Page 12



Annual Council – 9 May 2016 

 13 

(v) Transparency – Governance arrangements which ensure 
  residents can see that decisions are made reasonably and 
  fairly.    

(vi) Accountability – There is clear accountability for success 
  and failure for both members and officers   

(vii) Involvement – Members are able to set policy and take   
 ownership of key decisions. 

 
 
16 CHALLENGE AND IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 

(PAPER H) 
 
The Chairman of the Challenge and Improvement Committee presented the report 
which summarised the work done by the Committee in the preceding year and its 
proposed workplan for the future, and thanked all the Committee Members for their 
support and involvement. 
 

RESOLVED that the Challenge and Improvement Committee Annual 
Report 2015/16 be noted. 

 
 
17 APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES (PAPER I) 
 
A request had been received from Councillors Howitt-Cowan and Bardsley for the 
West Lindsey Dementia Action Alliance and the West Lindsey Churches Festival to 
be added to the Council’s list of Outside Bodies. 
 

RESOLVED that: 
a) the West Lindsey Dementia Action Alliance be added to the 

Council’s list of Outside Bodies; 
b) the West Lindsey Churches Festival be added to the Council’s list of 

Outside Bodies; 
c) Councillor Gill Bardsley and Councillor Paul Howitt-Cowan be the 

Council’s representatives on the West Lindsey Dementia Action 
Alliance; 

d) Councillor Gill Bardsley and Councillor Paul Howitt-Cowan be the 
Council’s representatives on the West Lindsey Churches Festival. 

 
 
18 CENTRAL LINCOLNSHIRE LOCAL PLAN SUBMISSION DRAFT (PAPER J) 

 
The Leader of the Council introduced the report which provided an update on the 
final stage of the Local Plan consultation and recommended that Members 
supported a formal consultation response that endorsed the Proposed Submission 
Draft Local Plan. 
 
Note Councillors Cotton and Curtis declared an interest in the report as being 
members of the Central Lincolnshire Joint Strategic Planning Committee. 
 

Page 13



Annual Council – 9 May 2016 

 14 

The Leader noted that the Plan had a vision for sustainable growth for the area and 
had a presumption in favour of development whilst also giving protection to 
communities from inappropriate development.  The benefits of Neighbourhood 
Planning were described which put local people at the forefront of decision making.  
Working on a vision for sustainable growth for Lincolnshire the Plan provided a 
platform for a settlement hierarchy.  53 policies in the Plan provided guidance on all 
aspects of development. 
 
The Leader expressed his thanks to officers and fellow Members for their work over 
the previous two years’ work, and recommended the report for approval. 
 
On being seconded and voted upon it was:- 

 
RESOLVED that: 
a) Members welcome the publication of the Proposed Submission 

Draft Central Lincolnshire Local Plan, recognising the framework for 
strong economic growth it provides, in that it: 

i. Provides a statutory spatial planning framework for the 
regeneration, growth and development of Gainsborough in 
accordance with the corporate aspirations this Council has for 
the town. 

ii. It assists with the use of major infrastructure assets present in 
the District to further jobs growth and economic prosperity 
within the District 

iii. It enables the growth and development of our market towns 
iv. It gives (through the provision of a five year housing land 

supply) appropriate protection to those areas within the 
District where further housing growth would damage the 
identity of communities and put a further strain on existing 
infrastructure 

v. It gives support to communities who desire to see their areas 
grow by providing a framework within which Neighbourhood 
Plans can be prepared. 

vi. It enables some of the smallest settlements in the District to 
grow at a scale appropriate to their needs. 
 

b) Council endorse the Proposed Submission Draft Local Plan and 
that authority be provided to the Chief Operating Officer and Leader 
of the Council to submit a formal representation to the Central 
Lincolnshire Joint Strategic Planning Committee and Local Plan 
team giving full WLDC support to the Proposed Submission Draft 
Local Plan (and therefore for the plan to proceed to Examination in 
Public and then adoption). 

 
 

The meeting concluded at 7.59 pm. 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 14



Extraordinary Council – 25 May 2016 

 15 

WEST LINDSEY DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Minutes of the Extraordinary Meeting of Council held in the Council Chamber at the 
Guildhall, Gainsborough, on Wednesday, 25 May 2016, at 7.00 pm. 
 
Present:  Councillor Roger Patterson (Chairman) 

   Councillor Jessie Milne (Vice Chairman) 
 

Councillor Gillian Bardsley 
Councillor Sheila Bibb 
Councillor Owen Bierley 
Councillor Matthew Boles 
Councillor Stuart Curtis 
Councillor Chris Darcel 
Councillor Michael Devine 
Councillor Adam Duguid 
Councillor Steve England 
Councillor Ian Fleetwood 
Councillor Paul Howitt - Cowan 
Councillor Angela Lawrence  
Councillor Stuart Kinch 
 

Councillor Giles McNeill  
Councillor John McNeill 
Councillor Pat Mewis 
Councillor Richard Oaks 
Councillor Judy Rainsforth 
Councillor Di Rodgers 
Councillor Reg Shore 
Councillor Thomas Smith 
Councillor Lewis Strange  
Councillor Jeff Summers 
Councillor Anne Welburn  

      Councillor Trevor Young 
 

 
Also Present:  three members of the public 

 
 

In Attendance: Manjeet Gill  Chief Executive 
Mark Sturgess  Chief Operating Officer 
Ian Knowles  Director of Resources 
Penny Sharp  Commercial Director 

   Alan Robinson Strategic Lead for Democratic and  
    Business Support and Monitoring Officer 
   Dinah Lilley Governance and Civic Officer 

 
 

Also in Attendance:  Rev Sue Deacon 
 
 

19 CHAIRMAN’S WELCOME 
 
The Chairman welcomed Members to the extraordinary meeting of the Council and 
began by sharing an announcement regarding the work of the Boundary 
Commission. 
 

“As I am sure you are aware the Boundary Commission is reviewing the 
boundaries for divisions within Lincolnshire County Council. As a consultee 
West Lindsey were invited to comment on proposals. In January Council 
agreed a response to the consultation which was sent to the Boundary 
Commission by the Director of Resources. The response includes an 

Page 15



Extraordinary Council – 25 May 2016 

 16 

alternative approach which was felt to meet the Governance requirements for 
West Lindsey better. 
 
I am pleased to say that our alternative proposals have been accepted by the 
Boundary commission. This is a great result demonstrating Democracy in 
action. I would like to thank the Governance and Audit and in particular their 
chair Cllr McNeil as well as the leader of the opposition Cllr Shore for their 
hard work on this.  
 
I understand that the next step is for the Council to communicate our 
agreement with the new proposals and I am sure that Mrs Gill and her team 
will ensure that this happens within the timescales.” 

 
 
20 APOLOGIES 

    Councillor David Bond 
  Councillor Alexander Bridgwood 

    Councillor Jackie Brockway 
    Councillor David Cotton 
    Councillor Hugo Marfleet  

    Councillor Malcolm Parish 
    Councillor Tom Regis 
    Councillor Lesley Rollings 

    Councillor Angela White 
 

 
21 MEMBERS’ DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Ian Fleetwood declared that he was a Lincolnshire County Councillor, and 
that LCC had agreed the report the previous week. 
 
 
22 GREATER LINCOLNSHIRE DEVOLUTION PROPOSAL (PAPER A) 

 
The Leader of the Council introduced the report, reminding Members of the process 
to date.  Council had received the Greater Lincolnshire Devolution Deal Interim 
Governance Proposal and the then latest version of the deal document at its meeting 
on 16 November 2015.  Council approved that the Greater Lincolnshire devolution 
expression of interest, submitted to Government on 4 September 2015, should be 
developed into a fit for purpose devolution deal document via continued formal 
engagement with Government and that authority was delegated to the Leader and 
Chief Executive to continue devolution discussions and negotiations with 
Government. 

 
These discussions and extensive work culminated in the Devolution Agreement 
being signed by the ten Greater Lincolnshire Council Leaders and Government 
Ministers.  This was formally announced by the Chancellor in the Budget on 16 
March. 

 

Page 16



Extraordinary Council – 25 May 2016 

 17 

There were clear statutory processes that needed to be followed in accordance with 
the Cities and Local Devolution Act 2016 to establish a mayoral combined authority 
and devolving appropriate powers from central government for May 2017.  The 
Greater Lincolnshire deal was one of the first to be progressed under this legislation.  

 
The constituent councils needed to undertake a governance review, publish a 
scheme as to how a mayoral combined authority would work, undertake a statutory 
public consultation on the scheme and provide a summary of the consultation 
responses to the Secretary of State.  The primary purpose of a governance review 
was to set out the rationale for creating a Greater Lincolnshire geographic/economic 
footprint and to propose options for governance. The governance review and the 
consultation on the draft scheme would enable the Secretary of State to decide 
whether the statutory tests on improving the exercise of functions were met and 
whether it was appropriate to make the order (if parliament approved) establishing 
the Mayoral Combined Authority.  Before making such an order, consent needed to 
be sought from the constituent councils. 

 
The report set out the terms of the governance review and the scheme on which 
consultation would take place.  Each council was to receive the attachments for 
consideration by its Full Council and a report inviting the same recommendations at 
their next scheduled meeting. 
 
The Leader clarified that the report was about gaining approval for public 
consultation.  The ten constituent authorities would work together achieving what 
National Government could not, in terms of community relationships.  Devolution 
was seen in the same way as Neighbourhood Plans by taking local control and 
funding from Government.  It was vital to appoint a mayor as the offer would not be 
worth taking without.  The ten leaders had met with Greg Clarke, but once a mayor 
was in place that person would speak on behalf of all the authorities.  Whilst there 
would be a cost this was anticipated to equate to a minimal precept per household. 
 
Benefits would be physical and social as well as financial, and the bid would grow 
and multiply, with further proposals in the next submission.  Each authority would 
have one vote on an equal basis, and each Council would continue as before with its 
current responsibilities.  The combined authority would only have responsibility for a 
set agenda or on issues which affected the whole of Lincolnshire which all members 
felt relevant. 
 
The Leader of the Opposition echoed the statements of the Leader and stated that it 
was important to have a vision and move forwards.  Lincolnshire was a large area 
but with a low population so had limited strength against other parts of the country, 
however now was the chance to take control.  Health and the road network could be 
issues covered in the future. 
 
Lengthy debate ensued with varying views being expressed and clarification sought 
on a number of points. 
 
Some Members were not in favour of the position of elected mayor, as this had 
previously been rejected by West Lindsey, however this post was to be a 
spokesperson for the combined authority, not about the governance of the District 

Page 17



Extraordinary Council – 25 May 2016 

 18 

Council.  It was felt that the benefits of the deal were being blurred by the resistance 
to the post of mayor and Members should let MPs know their feelings about the 
imposition of the post. 
 
Questions were raised about the level of consultation and the influence that this 
would have.  The Chief Executive confirmed that a communications plan was being 
developed and whilst no dates had yet been set it was proposed to hold workshops 
for Members in order for them to be fully informed to cascade information to the 
electorate.  It was important for the public to receive information regardless of their 
Ward Member’s views. 
 
It was noted that the current system of government had been in existence for a great 
many years and it was important to move forwards and achieve the best deal 
possible for Lincolnshire.  Devolution was evolution. 
 
The distribution of resources would be fair and equitable, and directed to where most 
benefit would be achieved, by a collective decision, with one vote each per 
constituent authority. 
 
The recommendations in the report were moved and seconded en bloc, and in 
accordance with the Constitution Part V, page 11, paragraph 14.4, two Members of 
the Council called for a recorded vote to be taken. 
 

For: Councillors Bardsley, Bibb, Bierley, Boles, Curtis, Devine, Duguid, 
England, Lawrence, Mewis, Oaks, Patterson, Shore, Strange, Summers, and 
Welburn.  
 
Against: Councillors Darcel, Howitt-Cowan, Kinch, J McNeill, Milne, 
Rainsforth, Rodgers, Smith and Young 
 
Abstained: Councillors Fleetwood and G McNeill 
 
A total of 16 votes for, nine against and two abstentions.   
 

RESOLVED that: 
a) the progress to date of the Devolution programme be noted; 
b) the recommendations set out below, be agreed: 

i. the signing of the Greater Lincolnshire Devolution Agreement by 
the Leader and delegation of further authority to the Leader and 
Chief Executive to engage in negotiations with Government 
regarding the potential devolution of further powers, 
responsibilities and resources be endorsed; 

ii. the contents of the Greater Lincolnshire Governance Review, as 
attached to the report be noted; 

iii. on the basis of the Governance Review, the council concludes 
that the establishment of a Mayoral Combined Authority for the 
Greater Lincolnshire area would be likely to improve the 
exercise of statutory functions in relation to the area; 

iv. accordingly, the council supports the preparation and 
publication of a Scheme for the establishment of a Mayoral 

Page 18



Extraordinary Council – 25 May 2016 

 19 

Combined Authority for the Greater Lincolnshire area under 
section 109 of the Local Democracy, Economic Development 
and Construction Act 2009; 

v. the publication of the draft Scheme for a Greater Lincolnshire 
Mayoral Combined Authority as attached to the report for 
consultation purposes, subject to such final revisions as may be 
approved by the Chief Executive, in consultation with the 
Leader, prior to commencement of the consultation exercise be 
supported; 

vi. the outcome of the consultation exercise be reported to the next 
meeting of the council; 

vii. council meets by 20 October 2016 to consider giving consent to 
an Order establishing a Mayoral Combined Authority for Greater 
Lincolnshire; 

viii. insofar as any of the matters referred to in the report concern 
the discharge of non-executive functions, authority be delegated 
to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader, to take 
all necessary steps and actions to progress  the 
recommendations detailed in the report; and 

ix. further reports be presented to Council as appropriate as the 
Devolution process develops. 

 
 

 
The meeting concluded at 8.40 pm. 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Council Matters Arising Schedule                                                 

Purpose:
To consider progress on the matters arising from previous Council meetings.

Recommendation: That members note progress on the matters arising and request corrective action if necessary.

Matters arising Schedule

Status Title Action Required Comments Due Date Allocated To
Black      

Corporate Plan The Director of Resources agreed that 
summary documents of the Corporate Plan 
would be compiled and provided to 
Members.

complete 09/05/16 Ian Knowles

Devolution Information Minute Extract from 11 April 2016
"the Chief Executive agreed to circulate the 
dates of the individual meetings (of the 
other GL authorities) to Members

All now taken place 16/05/16 Manjeet Gill

Devolution Information (2) Minute Extract from 11 April 2016
"The Chief Executive offered to attend 
Group meetings, if required to give 
clarification or answer any questions which 
Members may have" (if requested to do so).

No questions received to date 16/05/16 Manjeet Gill

Devolution Information (3) Minute Extract from 11 April 2016
"the Market Rasen Mail had featured an 
article on Questions and Answers around 
Devolution, and she would email the weblink 
to Members to be able to view this."

complete 16/05/16 Manjeet Gill

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Council 

4 July 2016

Subject: Appointments for Rural Transport Member Working Group

Report by: Chief Executive

Contact Officer: Grant White
Lead Officer Enterprising Communities
Email: grant.white@west-lindsey.gov.uk

Purpose / Summary:
To appoint Members to Rural Transport Working 
Group

RECOMMENDATION(S):
a) That Members be appointed to the Rural Transport Working Group. 

IMPLICATIONS

Legal: Appointments to the bodies listed in the report have to be legally and 
Constitutionally confirmed.

Financial: None

Staffing: None

Equality and Diversity including Human Rights : N/A

D

Page 23

Agenda Item 10

mailto:grant.white@west-lindsey.gov.uk


2

Risk Assessment : N/A

Climate Related Risks and Opportunities : N/A

Title and Location of any Background Papers used in the preparation of 
this report:  
Rural Transport Report – Prosperous Communities 29th October 2015

Call in and Urgency:
Is the decision one which Rule 14.7 of the Scrutiny Procedure Rules apply?

i.e. is the report exempt from being called in due to 
urgency (in consultation with C&I chairman) Yes No X

Key Decision:

A matter which affects two or more wards, or has 
significant financial implications Yes No x

Page 24



3

1. Introduction

1.1 At Prosperous Communities Committee on 29th October 2015 it was 
resolved that a Member Working Group for Rural Transport be established 
to assist officers in working up projects. The following names were put 
forward:

 Councillor Lewis Strange
 Councillor Lesley Rollings
 Councillor Di Rodgers
 Councillor Jessie Milne
 Councillor Steve England
 Councillor Paul Howitt-Cowan

1.2 At Annual Council on 9th May 2016 Paper D set out appointments of 
Members to committees, boards and other bodies. The confirmation of 
appointments to the Rural Transport Member Working Group were not 
included at this meeting due to on-going work to develop rural transport 
projects.

1.3 Following the above meetings Officers have been working to develop 
further projects and liaise with other stakeholders including Lincolnshire 
County Council as the Transport Authority. It is now an appropriate time 
to hold the first Member Working Group meeting for Rural Transport.

1.4 Appointments to the Rural Transport Member Working Group must be 
legally and constitutionally confirmed at Full Council.

2. Representatives to serve on other bodies

(a) To note that appointments are to be made on the following basis:

i) In the first instance any Member with a specialist interest or 
expertise in the particular field of the Outside Body should be 
appointed (the appointment should not be party political), Failing 
this, where possible, appointments should be made geographically 
involving a local Ward Member.  Where neither of these criteria 
can be met, any other Member should be appointed; 

ii) appointments are generally to be made for a four year period to be 
in line with District elections.  However, a number of bodies have 
their own arrangements for a four yearly cycle of appointments.

iii) where a body shows that the Leader, Chairman and/or Vice-
Chairman of a particular committee is the representative, this is 
because either the constitution of the body concerned requires it or 
there has been a previous Council decision that the office-holder 
will serve.  Where a body indicates that this has traditionally been 
the case, there is no actual requirement; and

Page 25



4

(b) to agree that places which have traditionally been filled by the Leader, 
Chairman and/or Vice-Chairman of a particular committee or their 
nominee continue to be so filled.

(c) to agree that appointed representatives should arrange for a reserve 
(where required) with the exception of those bodies marked with an 
asterisk * (as these are directorships and personal appointments).

(d) to appoint six members to serve on the Rural Transport Working Group.

Councillor Lesley Rollings
Councillor Di Rodgers
Councillor Jessie Milne
Councillor Steve England
Councillor Paul Howitt-Cowan
Vacancy 

Page 26


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meetings
	Extraordinary Council 25 May 2016

	5 Matters Arising
	10 Appointment to Rural Transport Working Group

